
1

Oak Bluffs Community Preservation Committee
P.O. Box 1327

                   Oak Bluffs, MA 02557

Joan Hughes, Chairman
Jevon Rego, Vice Chairman

Amy Billings
Jim Bishop

Jim Dearing
Stephen Durkee

Bo Fehl
Charles Rock

James Westervelt
Margaret Knight, Admin. Assis’t

Oak Bluffs Community Preservation Committee Minutes

September 19, 2016, 7:00 p.m.
Present: Joan Hughes, chair, Jevon Rego, vice-chair, Amy Billings, Jim Bishop, Jim Dearing, 
Steve Durkee, Bo Fehl, James Westervelt
Also Present: Margaret Knight, CPC admin. assistant, Donna Hayes, Jaye Shelby, Steve 
Auerbach, Phyllis Jampol

The meeting was opened at 7:00 p.m.

New CPC Member:

Jim Dearing was introduced as the new Historical Commission representative to 
the CPC, replacing Alison Shaw. He will be sworn in by Town Clerk.

Minutes:

The minutes from the CPC meeting on May 2, 2016 were approved.

Sunset Lake restoration project:

Donna Hayes of Friends of Sunset Lake gave an overview of the project to date.
The phragmities at the edge of Sunset Lake has been treated/removed over three years. 

She said their sidewalk project was on hold because the town was going to build 
the sidewalk, which got held up by the drainage problem at Greenleaf and Dukes County 
Ave. She said they hoped to make the sidewalk meander and be made of a porous 
material. She said Highway and Parks were good with that, but the project was put off 
after the bad winter two years ago, and then built only from Tony’s Market to School 
Street. 

Donna said they expect to have a plan for the rest of the grant money within a 
short amount of time, which may include a sidewalk and a few dog waste bag stands. Amy
said the Parks Dept. can do the dog bags.

Donna said one of the plans from the Horsely Witten report was a storm retro-fit 
to deal with the runoff, including plantings and a sidewalk. She said ConCom, Parks, and 
Highway have all agreed to it, so they have asked HW to revise the plan to include a 
sidewalk around the whole lake, and plantings around the lake to help deal with nitrogen 



2

uptake, and a bridge where the storm retrofit would be. She said there always was a 
sidewalk at Sunset from the 1800s. She said the remaining $32,000 could pay for the 
implementation of that proposal. 

Donna said the Friends of Oak Bluffs has reached out to them, and that they might 
help write a grant and also carry out an aspect of a project. She said the Sunset Lake 
group hopes to apply for a grant in the next round. Amy said Sunset Lake is one of the 
parks that Parks plans to rehabilitate.

Donna and Jaye described the removal of phragmities over three years, and said 
their group can take on some of the maintenance of continued removal, as well as other 
aspects of the future plan. Jaye said the plants are all marked as to what’s native and 
what’s not.  Jaye said the park is at the entrance to town, and said they might put a bike 
rack on the corner near the harbor. 

Project Updates:

Niantic Park:  Amy said Niantic Park is pretty much finished. Kris is working on figuring 
out the rest of the bills. She said the playground surface is done but has no warrantee yet.
Beach Mats: Amy said the beach mats were a huge success. She said future stakes they 
may need can be paid for by Parks.
Parks Study: Amy said Horsely Witten met with Parks for the last time. She said they had
met with some of the encroachers on the parks, and some are starting to form their own 
groups which may be helpful once Parks starts to renovate a park. 
Park phase 2:  Amy said she’d like to apply for a grant for one of the small parks to clean 
it up, curb it, get grass growing without irrigation, and plant a few things.
Fire Museum: Amy questioned whether CPA funds could be used for engine work on the 
old firetruck. She said, because it’s antique, it can’t be done as regular maintenance. 
Others agreed it would be restoration. She said the floor of the Fire Museum didn’t get 
done properly. She said Scanlon applied epoxy to the floor later. She said the artifacts are 
out of the museum so it’s a good time to do the work on them. She said they hope to have 
it like the Edgartown fire museum which has copies of original documents on display and 
cabinets with trophies, so the museum can be left open.
Oyster bio-remediation:  Steve said oysters will be available from Sengekontacket this 
winter. He said the coir logs have been put in along Felix Neck in the Salt Marsh 
Restoration project.
Permeable Barrier study:  Margaret said the study was completed. Steve A. said he 
didn’t think Gail had gotten the grant for the work. [10-3-16 She did not, but said the 
committee is pursuing other grants as they become available.]
Affordable Housing:  Jim Bishop said there is pushback from the neighbors of the 
proposed Belleview project. He said the project was denied connection to the sewer for 
the 32 units. He said Bob is supposed to be doing an RFP for that project. About the 
Kuehn’s Way project, he said Williams from the Cape would do it. 

There was discussion of the $50,000 voted at ATM for the Kuehn’s Way project, 
and the fact that Philippe Jordi came to the OBAH Trust to ask for $50,000 more in order 
that Oak Bluffs gets a residence preference. That other $50K request was denied. Joan 
said if the town were to not give the $50,000 that was approved at ATM2016, it would 
have to be voted at town meeting to rescind it. Margaret said town counsel has been 
working on some protection for the town as far as the present grant is concerned. 



3

Jim Bishop said the $700,000 to AH Trust from Southern Woodlands must be 
spent on hard construction costs, and nothing else. He said $260K would be needed for a 
mini plant on site for sewer for the Belleview project. He said the Trust just voted the 
balance of funds [$20,000]for the title research CPA-supported project, and said he would
ask Pete Bradford to give the CPC details. [Pete Bradford informed Margaret that Bob 
Whritenour had sent the town-owned lots to town counsel for title search.]

FinCom:  Amy said the new chair of FinCom is Jason Balboni, who wants to keep things 
simple. Amy said she had talked to him about the CPC recommendation process. Jason 
said FinCom needed more information up front. Amy suggested getting the CPC projects 
out to the public ahead of time so questions could be asked before town meeting. Steve 
Auerbach said FinCom will have the CPC in to their deliberations before they vote this 
year. Margaret said the CPC used to send out a letter to residents about the projects.  

Bo said he felt the FinCom shouldn’t judge the use of CPA money. Jevon said it’s 
frustrating to have FinCom vote in fifteen minutes on what the CPC has spent months 
looking at. He said about 50% of the state’s towns have FinCom review of CPA projects. 
Steve A. said he disagreed that FinCom shouldn’t have a review but agreed the CPC 
spends lots of time and that the projects should be given positive review. Joan said the 
CPC has distinct criteria that that delineate what the money can be given for, and is used 
for things which replace what the town budget doesn’t do. Amy said the town 
departments’ budgets are set up and used very differently. Jevon suggested CPC go to a 
FinCom meeting to explain the process. Jim W. said there are two conflicting state 
statutes regarding review of spending. Steve A. said FinCom could possibly vote to agree 
they don’t have jurisdiction over CPA spending. Joan suggested they could look at the 
projects as a whole rather than as individual projects. 

Future meetings:  Eligibility forms are due September 30. Final applications are due Oct. 
28. Meetings were set up for October 3 and 17, Nov. 7 and 21, and Dec. 5. Tentatively, 
meetings would be January 9 and 23.

CPC chair and vice-chair:
The CPC voted unanimously to elect Joan as Chairman and Jevon as Vice-Chairman.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m.


